
AMENDMENT #3: Philippines: Ore-to-Nickel and Cobalt Processing Facility Feasibility 
Study  
 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the feasibility study for the Philippines: 
Ore-to-Nickel and Cobalt Processing Facility is amended, as follows: 
 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications: This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet.  Responses to submitted 
questions are below. 
 
1. Question: Since there are few U.S. firms that specialize in nickeliferous lateritic ore, would 

the Client consider removing the term “lateritic” in Criteria 1a of the Award Criteria in 
Section 4 (Page 15)? 

 
Answer: This amendment clarifies to all offerors that experience in lateritic ore is not a 
requirement of the award criteria. Experience with nickeliferous laterite is preferred but not 
required. With this clarification, the award criteria remain otherwise unchanged.  

 
2. Question: Task 2 Paragraph 4 (Page 42) of the RFP states: 

 
“The Client expects to conduct the following technical tests on or prior to the start of this 
Activity. These are expected to be conducted within a four (4) to six (6) month timeframe. The 
Contractor shall review the progress of these tests and validate any results that may be 
available, including but not limited to: 
 

• Heads composite samples chemical and mineralogical analyses (duplicate samples); 
• MHP product samples chemical analysis (duplicate samples), from bench-scale 

metallurgical tests; 
• Tailings samples chemical analysis (duplicate samples), from bench-scale 

metallurgical tests; and 
• Other products streams chemical analysis (duplicate samples), from bench-scale 

metallurgical tests.” 
 
2a. Will the Client conduct (on its own) the said 4 tests prior to the engagement of the 
Contractor?  

 
Answer: The Client has conducted scoping-level metallurgical tests and has its own comparisons 
of each process based on its own criteria of selection. The Client will share the select test data 
with the selected Contractor. It is expected that the Contractor will then validate the performance 
of these tests to arrive at the most appropriate process to be recommended. The validation will 
include the execution of similar test runs that will be able to establish pre-pilot optimization of 
parameters in extracting identified metal values in marketable forms (currently specified as 
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mixed hydroxide precipitates intended as battery grade precursors to cathode active materials). 
Per the TOR requirements, the Contractor is expected to establish process flow, major equipment 
identification/sizing, plant design, and eventually conduct pre-pilot testing.  Notwithstanding the 
selection route used by the Client, the Contractor can propose its own methodologies, and this 
will be assessed accordingly. 

 
2b. How does the timelines work – will these tests (being conducted for 4-6 months) conclude 
prior to the Contractor being appointed on the job? 

 
Answer: The Client has already concluded its own scoping-level tests. 
 
2c. The scope of the Contractor is limited to: 
 

1. Review the tests and validate results? In such a case, the scope is not to do any further 
testing by the Contractor; or 

2. Re-doing the tests again, and reviewing and validating the results obtained by the 
Client in its testing? 

 
Answer: Please refer to 2a. To confirm, the Client is open to considering other methodologies 
proposed by the Contractor if they will produce more accurate information within acceptable 
timeframes and budgets. 
 
2d. Basically does the term “validation” mean redoing the tests OR doing lit review/critically 
analysing the results based on desktop research, etc. 
 
Answer: Same as 2c. 
 

3. Question: Can we perform the bench scale process testing here in the U.S.?  
 
Answer: It is expected that bench scale testing would take place in the United States at a U.S. 
university, third-party laboratory, and commercial lab. The Contractor shall propose potential 
options for conducting these tests, and the testing location shall be determined in consultation 
with the Client.  
 

4. Question: As far as the duration of the project, can we propose a 2-year period of performance 
to complete the feasibility study? 
 
Answer: Based on an initial evaluation of the study requirements, it was estimated that the full 
scope of work could take approximately 13 months to complete. However, it is expected that the 
Offeror will propose its own schedule for performance in the technical proposal. The schedule 
would be further discussed between the selected Contractor and the Client in Task 1 of the TOR. 
Potential offerors should note that per Clause K(2) of the Mandatory Contract Clauses no Grant 
Funds may be disbursed more than four (4) years after the Effective Date of the Grant 
Agreement (September 26, 2022).   
 



5. Question: How often (e.g., every 3, 6 or 12 months) do you want us to personally meet and do a 
project status meeting together? Do you want this meeting done there in the Philippines or here 
in the United States?  
 
Answer: The Offeror may propose the cadence of project status meetings, and this shall be 
further discussed with the selected Contractor in Task 1 of the TOR. In its proposal, the Offeror 
should ensure compliance with the TOR, which specifies some instances where travel to the 
Philippines is expected, for example in Task 1 for the kick-off meeting and in Task 5 for 
meetings with regulatory stakeholders. Under Task 1, the Contractor and Client shall further 
discuss expectations for in-person and virtual meetings, and the Contractor may propose key 
schedule milestones where travel to the Philippines may be warranted to fully execute the TOR. 
As a reminder, the Offeror may utilize up to 20% of the USTDA Grant Funds for Host Country 
(Philippines) labor. 
 

6. Question: We see that there is a need to submit hardcopies of the proposal by mail or in-person. 
Can this be submitted instead via e-mail? 
 
Answer: Per Section 2.13 Proposal Submission Requirements of the RFP, proposals should be 
submitted in both hard copy and electronic form to the addresses stated in the RFP. 
 
 


